# ARTICLE I

Section 1. The words "the property" as used in these By-Laws shall be deemed to mean the following described real property situated in Harris County, Texas, described as:

All of those certain tracts of land known as GREENBRIAR COLONY TOWNHOUSES, a subdivision as set forth on the map a plat thereof recorded in Volume 295, Page 79 of the Map Records of Harris County, Texas and GREENBRIAR COLONY PATIO HOMES, a subdivision as set forth on the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 298, Page 4 of the Map Records of Harris County, Texas

# ARTICLE II .

The name of the corporation shall be GREENBRIAR COLONY TENNIS AND SWIM ASSOCIATION, INC. ("the Corporation"). Its principal office shall be located at 2727 W. Loop WEST #200, Houston, Texas.

# ARTICLE III

- Section 1. The purpose for which the Corporation is formed are civic and social for the benefit and betterment of the residents and property owners of the property, those purposes being as follows:
- (a) Exercise all of the powers and privileges and perform all of the duties and obligations of the Corporation as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (the "Restrictions") recorded under County Clerk's File No. G705640 and G733581 of the Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, Texas, as the same may be amended from time to time;
- (b) To affix, levy, collect and enforce payment by any lawful means, all charges or assessments pursuant to the terms of the Restrictions; to pay all expenses in connection therewith and all office and other expenses incident to the conduct of the business of the Corporation, including all licenses, taxes or governmental charges levied or imposed against the property of

7

i I the Corporation;

- (c) To acquire by gift, purchase or otherwise, own, hold, improve, build upon, operate, maintain, convey, sell, lease, transfer, dedicate for public use or otherwise dispose of real or personal property in connection with the affairs of the Corporation subject to the limitations of the Restrictions.
- (d) To borrow money, to mortgage, pledge, or hypothecate any or all of its real or personal property as security for money borrowed or debts incurred, subject to the limitations of the Restrictions;
- (e) To promote and provide recreational facilities for the residents and the property owners of the property;
- (f) To provide general sanitation and cleanliness of recreational tract;
- (g) To provide any activity conducted for the mutual benefit of resident owners and to have and to exercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which a corporation organized under the Non-Profit Corporation laws of the State of Texas, by law may now or hereafter exercise.

# ARTICLE IV

The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Texas a registered office and a registered agent, whose office is identical with such registered office, as required by the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act. The registered office may be but need not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Texas, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

# ARTICLE V

Section 1. Every person or entity who is a record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any Living Unit, Tract or Lot which is subject, by covenants of record, to assessment by the Corporation, including contract sellers, shall be a member of the Corporation. The foregoing is not intended to include persons or entities who hold an interest merely as security for

the performance of an obligation. No owner shall have more than one membership for each Living Unit, Tract or Lot owned. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from any ownership of any Living Unit, Tract or Lot which is subject to assessment by the Corporation. Ownership of such Living Unit, Tract or Lot shall be the sole qualification for membership. Any mortgagee or lien holder who acquires title to any Living Unit, Tract or Lot which is a part of the Property, through judicial or non-judicial foreclosures, shall be a member of the Corporation.

Section 2. The Corporation shall have one class of voting membership.

CLASS A: Class A members shall be all owners, their successors and assigns, who shall be entitled to one vote for each Living Unit, Tract or Lot owned. When more that one person holds such interest in any Living Unit, Tract or Lot all such persons shall be Members. The vote for such Living Unit, Tract or Lot shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any Living Unit, Tract or Lot.

The first annual meeting shall be held in Section 3. accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and thereafter the annual maeting of the members shall be held on the second Wednesday in May of each year, at seven-thirty p.m., if not a legal holiday, and if a legal holiday, then on the next succeeding business day, for the purpose of electing a Board of Directors, hereinafter the "Directors", (after the term of office of the initial Directors or the successors to the initial Board of Directors has terminated), and for the transaction of any and all such other business which may be brought before or submitted to the meeting. All annual meetings of the members shall be held at the office of the Corporation in Harris County, Texas, unless otherwise determined by the Directors. No notice of the annual meeting shall be necessary unless business is to be taken up requiring notice under the Restrictions.

Section 4. Special meetings of the members shall be held at the office of the Corporation in Harris County, Texas, or at such other places as may be designated in the notice of, waiver, or waivers of notice of the respective meetings. Special

3

राम्य व्यवस्थात् स्वयंत्रिक्षात्राम् ए सर

meetings of the members may be called by the President or by a Vice President or by a majority of the Directors or by a majority vote of all the members. Written notice of each special meeting of the members stating the time and place thereof, and indicating briefly the purpose or purposes thereof shall be sent by mail or telegram or be delivered by the Secretary, or in the event of his absence or failure, refusal, inability or omission to do so, by the President or a Vice President or any Assistant Secretary, to each of the members of the Corporation or all holders of first liens on the property at their respective addresses, as shown by the records of the Corporation, at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for the holding of the meeting. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice or waiver or waivers of notice thereof, any and all business may be transacted at any annual or special meeting of the members. However, no vote to (i) alienate, hypothecate, transfer or assign the Corporation's interest in the common areas, (ii) change the assessment provisions of Article IV, Section 6 of the Restrictions, (iii) discontinue professional menagement of the Property and assume self-management by the Corporation, or (iv) approve, modify, accept or otherwise effect or reject any plan of condemnation of the Property shall be effective until all Lienholders have been notified of said vote and given a period of thirty (30) days in which to contact the Owners or the Corporation and suggest alternatives or changes in the Corporation's plans.

Section 5. Those persons or entities holding a majority of the total votes either in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for all purposes at any meeting of the members. number of members necessary to constitute a quorum at any annual or special meeting of the members shall fail to attend in person or by proxy, the members present in person or by proxy, may adjourn any such meeting from time to time without notice other than the announcement at the meeting until the number requisite to constitute a quorum shall be present or attend in person or by proxy. Those members holding a majority of all the votes of the

members present in person or by proxy, may also adjourn any annual or special meeting from time to time without notice, other than by announcement at the meeting, until the transaction of any and all business submitted or proposed to be submitted to such meeting or any adjournment or adjournments thereof shall have been completed. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum may be present, in person or by proxy, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed or called.

Section 6. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these amended By-Laws, any motion to (i) raise the annual assessments according to the terms of Article IV, Section 3 of the Restrictions, or (ii) to make a Special Assessment for capital improvements as provided in Article IV, Section 4 of the Restrictions, must be approved by members entitled to cast a majority of the votes of the Corporation.

Section 7. The President of the Corporation, and in the event of his absence, a Vice President of the Corporation, shall call meetings of the members to order and shall act as Chairman for such meetings. In the absence of the President and a Vice President of the Corporation, the members present may appoint a Chairman. The Secretary of the Corporation, or in his absence, an Assistant Secretary, shall act as Secretary of all meetings of the members but in the absence of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, the presiding officer may appoint any person to act as Secretary of the meeting.

Section 8. At all meetings of members, all questions, except those the manner of deciding which is otherwise expressly governed by statute, the charter of the Corporation or its By-Laws or the Restrictions shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes of the members cast in person or by proxy at a meeting duly called with a quorum present. All voting shall be by voice, except that upon the determination of the presiding officer of any meeting, or upon the demand of any member or his proxy, voting on any question shall be by secret ballot. Each ballot

shall be signed by the member voting or by his proxy. Cumulative voting for Directors is expressly prohibited. All voting shall be by members in person or by proxy as allowed by statute.

Section 9. Informal Action. The Corporation may act with or without a meeting, on any issue on which a vote of the members is required, by obtaining the written consent of members having the requisite majority of all outstanding vote of members of the Corporation.

# ARTICLE VI

Section 1. The business and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by the Directors and subject to the restrictions imposed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, by these By-Laws or the Restrictions on the property. The Directors may exercise all of the powers of the Corporation.

The number of Directors initially, shall be three. The Directors may, by majority vote of its own members, increase the number Directors to five (5) members. The initial Directors as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve for the terms as set out in said Articles of Incorporation. Upon the expiration of a Director's term, a successor shall be elected for a term of three years at the annual meeting of the members of the Corporation. Each Director shall be elected to hold office and serve for three years or until his successors shall be elected. and shall duly qualify. Any Director may be removed from the Board for cause, by a vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by those members present in person or represented by proxy at a meeting of the members at which a quorum is present. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a Director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Directors and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor. The Directors need not be members of the Corporation.

Section 2. The Directors may hold their meetings and have offices and keep the books of the Corporation, except as

Ų)

otherwise provided by statute, at the office of the Corporation.

Section 3. No Director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Corporation. However, any Director may be reimbursed for his actual reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

Section 4. At the first meeting of the Directors in each year at which a quorum is present, the Directors shall proceed to the election of the officers of the Corporation. No notice or waiver of notice of any such first meeting shall be required or necessary if it is held immediately after either the annual meeting or the adjourned annual meeting of the members, and any and all business of any nature or character may be transacted at such first meeting.

Section 5. Regular meetings of the Directors shall be held at such time and place as shall be designated, from time to time, by resolution of the Directors. Notice of such regular meetings shall not be required.

Section 6. Special meetings of the Directors shall be held whenever called by the President, Vice President, Secretary or a majority of the Directors in office. Notice of each special meeting shall be given by any officer of the Corporation by telegraph, mail, telephone or personal delivery to each Director at his residence or usual place of business at least two days prior to the meeting. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any and all business may be transacted at a special meeting. At any meeting at which every Director shall be present, even though without any notice, any business may be transacted.

Section 7. The majority of the Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if at any meeting of the Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without notice, other than by announcement at the meeting, until a quorum be present or in attendance thereat. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at

which a quorum is in attendance shall constitute the act of the Directors, except as otherwise provided by law, the charter of the Corporation, or by these By-Laws or the Restrictions.

Section 8. At meetings of the Directors, business shall be transacted in such order as from time to time, the Directors may determine. At all meetings of the Directors, the President shall preside, and in the absence of the President, a Chairman shall be chosen from the Directors present. The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as Secretary of all meetings of the Directors, but in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer may appoint any person to act as Secretary of the meeting.

Section 9. No Director or officer of the Corporation shall be required to devote his time or render services exclusively to the Corporation. Each Director and Officer of the Corporation shall be free to engage in any and all other businesses and activities either similar or dissimilar to the business of the Corporation without liability to the Corporation. Likewise, each and every Director and Officer of the Corporation, may become a Director or Officer of any other corporation or corporations, entity or entities, whether or not the purposes of the other corporations conflict with the business or activities of the Corporation, without breach of duty to the Corporation or its members and without liability of any character or description to the Corporation or its members. No contract or other transaction of the Corporation shall ever be affected by the fact that any Director or Officer of the Corporation is interested in, or connected with any party to such contract or transaction, or is party to such contracts or transactions, provided that such contract or transaction shall be present at a meeting of the Directors at which such contract or transaction shall be authorized or confirmed. :

# ARTICLE VII

Section 1. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President (who shall be a Director), one or more Vice Presidents, a Treasurer, a Secretary and such other officers including but not limited to one or more assistant secretaries and one or more assistant treasurers, as the Directors may from time to time elect or appoint. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the office of President and Secretary. All officers shall be subject to removal, with or without cause, at any time, by vote of a majority of the Directors. A vacancy in the office of any officer shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the Directors then in the office.

Section 2. The President, subject to the control of the Directors, shall be in general charge of the affairs of the Corporation in the ordinary course of its business; he shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Directors; he may when authorized to do so by the Directors make, sign and execute all deeds, conveyances, assignments, bonds, contracts and other obligations and any and all other instruments and papers of any kind or character in the name of the Corporation; and, he shall do and perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Directors.

Section 3. Each Vice President shall have the usual powers and duties pertaining to his office together with such other powers and duties as may be assigned to him by the Directors, and the Vice President shall have and exercise the powers of the President during the officer's absence or inability to act. Any action taken by a Vice President in the performance of the duties of the President shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the President at the time such action was taken.

Section 4. The Treasurer shall have custody of all the funds and securities of the Corporation which come into his hands. When necessary or proper, he may endorse, on behalf of the Corporation, for collection, checks, notes and other

9

obligations and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation in such bank or banks or depositories as shall be designated in the manner described by the Directors; he may sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the Corporation, either alone or jointly with such officer as is designated by the Directors; whenever required by the Directors, he shall render a statement of his cash account, he shall enter or cause to be entered regularly on the books of the Corporation to be kept by him for that purpose full and accurate accounts of all moneys received and paid out on account of the Corporation; he at all reasonable times, shall exhibit his books and accounts to any Director of the Corporation during business hours; he shall perform all acts incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the Directors; he shall, if required by the Directors, give such bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such form as the Directors may require.

Section 5. Each Assistant Treasurer shall have the usual powers and duties pertaining to his office, together with such other powers and duties as may be assigned to him by the Directors and the Assistant Treasurer shall exercise the powers of the Treasurer during that Officer's absence or inability to act.

Section 6. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the meetings of the Directors and the minutes of all meetings of the members in books provided for that purpose; he shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices; he may sign with the President or a Vice President in the name of the Corporation on all contracts, conveyances, transfers, assignments, authorizations and other instruments of the Corporation and affix the seal of the Corporation thereto. He shall have charge of and maintain and keep such books and papers as the Directors may direct, all of which shall at all reasonable times be open to the inspection of any Director, member of the Corporation, or any holder of a first mortgage on any Living Unit, Tract or Lot upon request at the office of the Corporation during business hours

and he shall in general perform all duties incident to the Office of Secretary subject to the control of the Directors.

Section 7. Each Assistant Secretary shall have the usual powers and duties pertaining to the office, together with such other powers and duties as may be assigned to such officer by the Directors, and the Assistant Secretaries shall exercise the powers of the Secretary during that Officer's absence or inability to act.

#### ARTICLE VIII

Section 1. The Directors, except as these By-Laws otherwise provide, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents acting, by committee or otherwise, in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument, or do such other things as the Directors may from time to time direct and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and, unless so authorized by the Directors or expressly authorized by the By-Laws, no officer or agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniarily for any purpose or to any amount.

Section 2. No loan shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation, and no negotiable papers shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the vote of the Directors.

Section 3. All checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money out of the funds of the Corporation, and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation shall be signed on behalf of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Directors.

Section 4. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or other depositories as the Directors may select and for the purpose of such deposit the President, Vice President, the Treasurer, the Secretary, or any

Ĭ\#

other officer or agent or employee of the Corporation to whom such power may be delegated by the Directors, may endorse, assign and deliver checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money which are payable to the order of the Corporation.

Section 5. The Directors, within ninety (90) days of the fiscal year end, shall cause to be prepared, and shall make available to any owner or first mortgage holder, annual audited financial statements of the Corporation.

# ARTICLE IX

Section 1. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end at midnight on December 31 of each calendar year.

Section 2. The seal of the Corporation shall be circular in form and have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation.

Section 3. Whenever any notice whatever is required to be given under the provisions of these By-Laws, said notice shall be deemed to be sufficient if given by depositing the same in a post office box in a sealed, post-paid wrapper addressed to the person entitled thereto at his post office address, as it appears on the books of the Corporation, and such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the day of such mailing. A waiver of notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to notice.

Section 4. Any Director or Officer may resign at any time. Such resignation shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein; or, if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the President or Secretary. The acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation.

# ARTICLE X

Each Director and Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against any costs and expenses, including attorney's fees actually and necessarily incurred in connection with the defense of any civil, criminal, administrative or other claim, action, suit or proceeding

N

Ì

(whether by or in the right of the Corporation or otherwise) in which he may become involved or with which he may be threatened, by reason of his being or having been a Director or Officer of the Corporation, and against any payments in settlement of any such claim, action, suit or proceeding or in satisfaction of any related judgment, fine or penalty upon receipt by the Corporation of any opinion of independent legal counsel that he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the interest of the Corporation, and in respect of any criminal action, reasonably believed that his conduct was The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the Director or Officer did not act in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Corporation, and in respect of any criminal action or proceeding, did not reasonably believe his conduct was lawful. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any rights to which any Director or Officer may be entitled under any other By-Law, agreement vote of disinterest Director, as a matter of law or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Director or Officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, no person shall be entitled to indemnification pursuant thereto in relation to any matter as to which indemnification shall not be permitted by law.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the

1/2

1.2

4

power to indemnify him against such liability under the preceding provisions of this Article or applicable provisions of law.

# ARTICLE XI

These By-Laws may be amended by a written vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the members of the Corporation at any annual meeting of the members, or if notice of a proposal to amend these By-Laws and the respect in which proposed to be amended is given in any call of a special meeting of members, at such special meeting, or by any writing signed by members entitled to cast a majority of the votes.

Provided and on condition that the power to amend the By-Laws shall have been delegated to the Directors of the Corporation by the members of the Corporation, then these By-Laws may also be amended by the Directors of the Corporation at any annual meeting of the Directors, or, if notice of a proposal to amend these By-Laws and the respect in which proposed to be amended is given in any call of a special meeting of the Directors, at such special meeting.

Provided also that nothing herein shall authorize the members or the Directors to alter or amend any of the By-Laws in conflict with the provisions of the Restrictions applicable to the Property.

The words "amend" and "amended" shall be broadly interpreted to include alterations, modifications, additions and repeal, in whole or in part.

These First Amended By-Laws are hereby adopted and shall supercede and replace in its entirety any previous By-Laws of the Corporation. Such action is hereby taken and approved on this the Z5 day of November

LRY PROVISION HEREIN WINCH RESTRICTS THE SALE, RENTAL, ON USE OF THE DESCRIBED HEAL PROPERTY SECAUTE OF COLOR OR RACE IS MYALID AND WHENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERALLIAN. THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS I hereby certify first this instrument was FRED in Fift Humber Sequence on the date and at the lime flinged betweedy me; and wer doly RECORDED. In the Official Pablic Records of Real Property of Kartie County, Texas on

MAR - 5 2002

COUNTY CLERK HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

14

RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM

AT THE TIME OF RECORDATION, THIS
INSTRUMENT WAS FOUND TO BEINADEQUATE
FOR THE REST. BUILDING. FOR THE BEST PHOTOGRA ARPY ) ICTION BECAUSE OF ILLEGIBILIT ( RBON PHOTO COPY, DISCOLORED , HER, ETC